











































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































infibeam Digital Entertainment Private Limited
Notes to the financials statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. Corporate Information

infibeam Digital Entertainment Private Limited was incorporated on June 25, 2012 as per the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the business of sale of digital products (like music
applications), organising entertainment events, online ticketing and advertisement for entertainment

events,
2. Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Iind AS) under
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) (to the extent notified) and
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance
with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from
Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

® Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments),

The financial statements are presented in INR. These financial statements are the separate financial
statements of the Company.

3. Critical accounting estimates

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

3.1. Estimates and assumption

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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3.2 Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the obligation are determined using

actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate.
Discount rate has been determined by reference to market yields on the government bonds as at the
balance sheet date. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are
based on expected future inflation rates for the country.

3.3, Taxes

Income-tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance
with the income-tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing
differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period). Income-tax expense is
recognised in profit or loss except that tax expense related to items recognised directly in reserves is
also recognised in those reserves. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to
(recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the applicable tax rates and tax laws.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income i.e. differences that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or
assets are recognised using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable
certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or
carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual
certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each
balance sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually
certain (as the case may be) to be realized.

34, Intangible asset including intangible asset under development

Intangible development costs are capitalised as and when technical and commercial feasibility of the
asset is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable. The costs which can be capitalized
include the salary and ESOP cost of employees that are directly attributable to development of the asset
for its intended use. Research costs are expensed as incurred. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Refer Note 4.4 for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The carrying value of
intangible assets has been disclosed in Note 6.
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3.5, Property, plant and equipment
Refer Note 4.3 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of

Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.

3.6. Revenue recognition
Revenue from the services rendered is recognized proportionally over the period in which the services
are rendered as per the rates and terms agreed with the customer.

3.7. Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

In assessing the recoverability of assets including trade receivables, unbilled receivables and
investments, the Company has considered internal and external information upto the date of approval
of these financial statements including credit reports and economic forecasts. The Company has
performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current indicators of future
economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The
eventual outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated on
the date of approval of these financial statements.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the company in preparing its financial
statements:

4.1. Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current

classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

® Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

® Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

® Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

® Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for

at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A ligbility is current when:

® it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

® it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

® it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

® There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

4.2. Fair value measurement

Eair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place

gither:

® in the principal market for the asset or liability

Or

o in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as described below, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
o Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the fowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

® Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy, as explained above.
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This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in

the relevant notes.

e Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
® Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
® Financial instruments {including those carried at amortised cost)

4.3. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
All repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready for their

intended use at the balance sheet date.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:
® Plant and equipment - 5 to 10 years
® Computer & Peripherals - 310 & years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognised.

4.4. Intangible Assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its intangible assets as recognised
in its previous GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transition date, i.e., 1 April 2015.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost include acquisition and other incidental cost related to acquiring the intangible
asset.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Intangible development costs are capitalised as and when
technical and commercial feasibility of the asset is demonstrated, future economic benefits are
probable. The costs which can be capitalized include the salary and ESOP cost of employees that are
directly attributable to development of the asset for its intended use.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
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method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in ccounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation
Period of amortisation of internally generated intangibles is 5 years and period of acquired intangibles

ranges between 3 years to 10 years.

Intangible assets under development
Expenditure incurred on acquisition Jconstruction of intangible assets which are not ready for their
intended use at balance sheet date are disclosed under Intangible assets under development.

4.5, leases

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Leases in which a
significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. Initial direct costs incurred
specifically for an operating lease are deferred and charged to the statement of profit and loss over the
jease term.

4.6. impairment of non-financial assets ‘

Non-financial assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash generated unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not
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exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

4.7. Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that

reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services.

Rendering of services

Revenue from Services is recognised upfront at the point in time when the service is delivered to the
customer. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with the customer
and excludes amounts collected on behalf of customers. The Company presents revenue net of
discounts and collection charges. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.,

Revenue from holding company / fellow-subsidiaries is recognised based on transaction price which is
at arm’s length.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts.
Contract assets are classified as unbilled revenue (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is
unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Excess billing over revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billing in excess of revenues.

in accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contract provision when the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be
received.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and
requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract,
basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction
orice of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for
existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by offering and geography.

The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a
point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer
consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence
of enforceable right to payment for performance to date as per contract.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
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amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income
in the statement of profit or loss.

4.8. Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets

{i) Initial recognition and measurement.

All financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are recognised initially at fair
value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

(i) Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

® Debt instruments at amortised cost

® Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

® Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

° Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
® Equity instruments measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss (FVTPL)
{iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or. where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-
through' arrangement; and either {(3) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset
to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Company could be required to repay.

{iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no
significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at
lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses {or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

b) Financial Liabilities

{i) initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

(i) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

® Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized
in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair
value through profit and loss,
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{iit) Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or

expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

c) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
f there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.9, Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

4.10. Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside Statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or equity). Current tax
iterns are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
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® When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

® In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that itis
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

® In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
orofit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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4.11. Retirement and other employee benefits
a) Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term

employee benefits. The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised during the year.

b) Post-Employment Benefits

{i) Defined benefit plan

Gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method as at the date of the Balance sheet reduced by the fair value of any plan assets. The discount
rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on
the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OC
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
® The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
® The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
Statement of profit and loss:

® Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

® Net interest expense or income
The Company has not invested in any fund for meeting liability.

4.12.  Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders for
the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the
weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive
potential equity shares into equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market
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value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of
the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for each period presented.

4,13, Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties etc.
are recognised when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be estimated
reliably,

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless
the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed
in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually
certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in
the period in which the change occurs.

4,14  New and amended standards
Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19- Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical
expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is
a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments
resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change
under Ind AS 116, if the change were not a lease modification. This amendment had no impact on the
standalone financial statements of the Company.
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Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. These amendments
had no impact on the standalone financial statements of, nor is there expected to be any future impact
to the Company.

Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a
number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by interest rate
benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainty about the
timing and/ or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument.
These amendments have no impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company as it does
not have any interest rate hedge relationships.

The amendments to Ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entities are required to make for
hedging relationships to which the reliefs as per the amendments in Ind AS 109 are applied. This
amendment had no impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

4.14  Standards issued but not yet effective

There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective on March 31, 2021.
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Note 5 : Property, plant and equipment

indian Rupees

Cost

As at March 31, 2019 34,812 3,20,371 3,55,183

Additions - - -
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 2020 34,812 3,20,371 3,55,183

Additions - - -
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 2021 34,812 3,20,371 3,55,183

Depreciation and Impairment
As at March 31, 2019 33,072 3,04,352 3,37,424

Depreciation for the year - - -
Deductions - , - -
As at March 31, 2020 33,072 3,04,352 3,37,424

Depreciation for the year - - R
Deductions - . .
As at March 31, 2021 33,072 3,04,352 3,37,424

Net Block
As at March 31, 2021 1,740 16,019 17,759
As at March 31, 2020 1,740 16,019 17,759
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Note 6 : Other intangible assets and intangible assets under development

Indian Rupees

Cost

As at March 31, 2019
Additions

Capitalised

As at March 31, 2020
Additions

Capitalised

As at March 31, 2021

Amortisation and Impairment
As at March 31, 2019
Amortisation for the year
Deductions

As at March 31, 2020
Amcrtisation for the year
Deductions

As at March 31, 2021

Net Block
As at March 31, 2021
As at March 31, 2020

927,93,043 935,10,000 1863,03,043
927,93,043 935,10,000 1863,03,043
927,93,043 935,10,000 1863,03,043
550,14,041 935,10,000 1485,24,041
166,61,614 - 166,61,614
716,75,655 935,10,000 1651,85,655
142,06,040 - 142,06,040
858,81,695 935,10,000 1793,91,695

69,11,348 - 69,11,348
211,17,388 - 211,17,388
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Note 7 : Financial assets

7 Trade receivables

Trade receivables

Current
Unsecured, considered good* - 39,67,120
Total Trade and other receivables - 39,67,120

(i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 180 days.
(i) For amount dues and terms and conditions relating to Related Party Transactions, refer note 25.
(iii) For explanation on Company’s credit risk management process, refer note 29

7 Cash and cash equivalent

Balance with Bank

Current accounts 8,955 -
Cash on hand 1,57,250 1,57,250
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,66,205 1,57,250

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Balance with Bank

Current accounts 8,955 -
Cash on hand : 1,57,250 1,57,250
1,66,205 1,57,250

7 Financial assets by category

March 31, 2021
Trade receivables -
Cash & cash equivalents 1,66,205
other financial assets -
Total Financial assets ' 1,66,205

partictars .~ . . .  WIPL = ROG

March 31, 2020

Trade receivables 39,67,120
Cash & cash equivalents 1,57,250

other financial assets
Total Financial assets 41,24,370
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For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 29
Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities and fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment

are in Note 29.

Note 8 ; Other current / non-current assets

Non-current

Security deposits 30,000 30,000
30,000 30,000
Current

Advances to suppliers 3,00,000 2,98,380
Balance with government authorities 8,89,368 8,13,046
Interest accured on security deposits 1,395 1,875
11,90,763 11,13,301
Total 12,20,763 11,43,301

Note 9 : Income tax assets

Non-current
Tax paid in advance 2,23,322 18,67,176

2,23,322 18,67,176

Total 2,23,322 18,67,176
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Note 10 : Equity share capital

Authorised share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 50,00,000 500,00,000 50,00,000 500,00,000
issued and subscribed share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 42,50,000 425,00,000 42,50,000 425,00,000
Subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 42,50,000 425,00,000 42,50,000 425,00,000
Total 42,50,000 425,00,000 42,50,000 425,00,000

10.1. Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares
The Company has equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. All equity shares rank equally with regard to dividend and share

in the Company’s residual assets in proportion of amount paid up. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from
time to time. Each holder of the equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
On winding up of Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of Company, remaining after

distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to number of equity shares held.

10.2. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

: ndian Rupe share
42,50,000 425,00,000 42,50,000

425,00,000

At the beginning of the year

Add:

Shares issued during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 42,50,000 425,00,000 42,50,000 425,00,000

10.3. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the company

Infibeam Avenues Limited 31,45,000 31,45,000
Sony Music Entertainment India Private Limited 11,05,000 11,05,000
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Note 11 : Other Equity

{Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per last financial statements (1142,63,155) {1162,91,949)
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year {(165,07,451) 20,28,794
Balance at the end of the year {1307,70,606) {1142,63,155)
Total Other equity {1307,70,606) (1142,63,155)

Note 12 : Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Short-term Borrowings

Unsecured
Loans from holding company 65,316 -
Total short-term borrowings 65,316 -
12 Trade payable

Current
Trade payables
Outstanding dues of Micro, Smali,
Medium enterprise - -
Qutstanding dues to others 16,84,102 16,84,102
Total 16,84,102 16,84,102

(i) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 days terms.

{ii) For disclosure required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006, refer note 31

{iii} For explanation on Company’s liability risk management process, refer note 29
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12 Other financial liabilities

Current

Employee benefits payable 8,769 -

Provision for expenses 8,09,496 7,37,387

Creditor for capital expeneses 416,388,412 416,88,412

Creditor for expenses 158,15,620 176,00,884

Book overdraft - 201,46,859

interest on loan payable* 5,86,793

Reimbursement of expenses payable to

fellow subsidiary* - 31,75,281
Total 589,09,090 833,48,822

* includes dues to holding company and fellow subsidiaries ( refer note 25)

12 Financial liabilities by category

March 31, 2021

Borrowings 65,316
Trade Payables 16,84,102
Other financial liabilities 589,09,090
Total Financial liabilities 606,58,508

March 31, 2020
Borrowings

Trade Payables 16,84,102
Other financial liabilities 833,48,822
Total Financial liabilities 850,32,924

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 29

Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 29 and fair value hierarchy disclosures for

investment are in Note 29.

Note 13 : Other current / Non-current liabilities

Current
Advance Deposit from customers 361,00,000 150,00,000
Statutory liabilities- Others 51,496 225
361,51,496 150,00,225
Total 361,51,496 150,00,225
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Note 14 : Revenue from operations

Sale of services - 1,00,000

Total - 1,00,000

Note 15 : Qther income

Interest income 67,029 78,333
Amount written off - 70,988
Liability no longer payable 675 199,32,856
Total 67,704 200,82,177

Note 16 : Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 3,45,126 -
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 5,010 1,050
Total 3,50,136 1,050

Note 17 : Finance costs

interest expense - on statutory dues 482 6,434
Interest expense - Others 6,34,371 -
Total ' 6,34,853 . 6,434

Note 18 : Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on Tangible assets {Refer Note 5} - -
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 142,06,040 166,61,614
Total 142,06,040 166,61,614
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Note 19 : Other expenses

Bank charges - 20,060
Legal and consultancy expenses 1,34,900 1,84,420
Office expenses - 76,806
Payments to auditors* 74,998 75,000
Rent 3,30,000 6,00,000
Rate and taxes - 21,570
Event management expenses : ) - 4,47,323
Electricity expenses 57,975 56,884
Late return filling fees - 2,222
Written Off 7,86,253 -

Total 13,84,126 14,84,285

* payments to auditors

Statutory audit 74,958

75,000

74,998

75,000
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Note 20 : Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities not provided for
a. Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts - -
b. Guarantees given by bank on behalf of the Company - -

Note 21 : Capital commitment and other commitments

Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital - -
account and not provided for {net of advance)

Note 22 : Foreign Exchange Derivatives and Exposures not hedged
A. Foreign Exchange Derivatives: The Company does not have any foreign exchange derivatives

B. Exposure Not Hedged: The Company does not have any foreign exchange exposures
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Note 23 : Income tax
The major component of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are :

Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax
Current income tax - -

Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense/ {credit) - .

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss - -

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2021 and
March 31, 2020.
A) Curre

Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations (165,07,451) 20,28,794

Tax @ 26% {March 31, 2020: 26%) (42,91,937) 5,27,486
Adjustment

Non-deductable expenses (B}

Other (C)

Tax benefits (D} - -
Tax benfit on B/f Losses 42,91,937 {5,27,486)

Income tax expenses - -
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B) Deferred tax

Bought forward loss and unabsorbed

depreciation 251,28,493 211,71,384 - -
Excess of depreciation/ amortisation on fixed assets

in accounts  aver depreciation/amortisation

provided under income-tax law. 84,77,356 82,09,623 - -

Deferred tax expense/(income)
Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 336,05,850 293,81,007

* In absence of virtual certainty of realisation, the company has not recognized
deferred tax assets of Rs 3,36,05,850/~ (previous year Rs 29,381,007/-)

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows

Deferred tax assets -
Deferred tax liabilities - -

Deferred tax assets {net) - R

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net
Opening balance as of Aprit 1

Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss -
Tax income/{expense) during the year recognised in OCI
Closing balance as at March 31

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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Note 24 : Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits

Amount of Rs. 5,010 (March 31, 2020: Rs.1,050} is recognised as expenses and included in Note No. 16 "Employee benefit

expense”

Provident Fund 5010
5,010
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Note 25 : Related Party disclosures.

As per the Indian Accounting Standard on vRelated Party Disclosures” (IND AS 24), the related parties of the Company are as follows :

Name of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship :

“Name of company/person

Relationship

1 » Holding company Infibeam Avenues Limited
2 Fellow subsidiary Odigma Consultancy Solutions Private Limited
infibeam Logistics Private Limited

Entities holding significant Sony Music India Private Limited
3 influence over the Company

Associate Company NS! infinium Global Limited (formerly known as NS Infinium
4 Global Pvt Ltd) (from 01/03/2019 till 31/03/2020)
5 Key Management personnel Mr Vishal Mehta

Mr Roopkishan Dave

Loan taken

infibeam Avenues Limited 31-03-2021 289,83,445 - - 289,83,445
31-03-2020 - - - -

Loan repaid

infibeam Avenues Limited 31-03-2021 289,18,129 - - 289,18,129
31-03-2020 - - - -

Repayment of expense payabie

Odigma Consultancy Solutions Private Limited 31-03-2021 - - -
31-03-2020 - 1,00,000 - 1,00,000

Reimbursement of expenses

infibeam Avenues Limited 31-03-2021 - - - -
31-03-2020 13,30,420 - - 13,30,420

Other income - Balances written off

infibearn Avenues Limited 31-03-2021 - - - -
31-03-2020 109,20,000 - - 109,20,000

Interest expense - Loan :

Infineam Avenues Limited 31-03-2021 5,34,371 - - 6,34,371
31-03-2020 - - - -

Other Expense

infibeam Avenues Limited 31-03-2021 6,45,000 - - 6,45,000
31-03-2020 6,00,000 - - £,00,000

Odigma Consultancy Solutions Private Limited 31-03-2021 - 5,586 - 5,586
31-03-2020 - 12,06,418 - 12,06,418

Infibeam Logistics private limited 31-03-2021 - 8,769 - 8,769

31-03-2020 - - - -
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Closing balances

interest on loan payable

Infibeam Avenues Limited 31-03-2021 5,86,793 - - 5,86,793
31-03-2020 - - - -
Loan
infibeam Avenues Limited 31-03-2021 65,316 - - 65,316
31-03-2020 - - - -
Reimbursement of expense payable
NSI infinium Global Limited 31-03-2021 - - - -
31-03-2020 - - 155,38,305 155,38,305
Odigma Consuitancy Solutions Private Limited 31-03-2021 - -
. 31-03-2020 - 31,75,281 - 31,75,281
Infibeam Avenues Limited 31-03-2021 1,38,150 1,38,150
31-03-2020 19,40,371 - 19,40,371
Capital Creditor
NS! infinium Global Limited 1-03-2021 - - - -
31-03-2020 - - 416,88,412 416,88,412

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties3

Transaction entered into with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevait in arm’s fength transactions. Outstanding balances at the year end
are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

Commitments with related parties
The Company has not provided any commitment to the related party as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: Rs.Nil}
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Note 26 : Earning per share

Earing per share {Basic and Diluted)
Profil/{Loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders (165,07,451) 20,28,794

Total no. of equity shares at the end of the year 42,50,000 42,50,000

Weighted average number of equity shares

For basic EPS ) 42,50,000 42,50,000
For diluted EPS 42,50,000 42,50,000
Nominal value of equity shares 10.00 10.00
Basic earning per share (3.88) 0.48
Diluted earning per share (3.88) 0.48

Weighted average number of equity shares

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 42,50,000 42,50,000
Effect of dilution: - -

Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of

dilution 42,50,000 42,50,000

Note 27: Segment reporting

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating segments and
related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. The Company's operations
predominantly relate to providing end-to-end business solutions to enable clients to enhance business performance. Based on the
"management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic
segments. There is no geographical segment to be reported since all the operations are undertaken in India.

Note 28 : Operating Lease

The Company has taken a commercial premises under operating leases. The leases period is of 1 year. These leasing arrangements
are cancellable, and are renewable on a periodic basis by mutual consent on mutually accepted terms including escalation of lease
rent. Total expense incurred under the cancellable operating lease agreement recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Lass during the year is Rs. 3,30,000 {previous year Rs. 6,00,000)
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Note 29 : Financial instruments ~ Fair values and risk management
A. Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2021

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,66,205 - - 1,66,205 - - - -

1,66,205 = = 1,66,205 - - - -

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 65,316 - - 65,316 - - - -
Trade payables 16,84,102 - - 16,84,102 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 589,09,090 - - 589,092,090 - - - -

606,58,508 - - 606,58,508 - - - -
As at 31 March 202/

Financial assets

Trade receivables 39,67,120 - - 39,67,120 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,57,250 - - 1,57,250 - - - -

41,24,370 - - 41,24,370 - - - -

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 16,84,102 - - 16,84,102 - - - B
Other financial iabilities 833,48,822 - - 833,48,822 - - - -
850,32,924 - - 850,32,924 - - - -

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not hased on observable market data {(uncbservable inputs).

B. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
= Creditrisk;

» Liquidity risk ; and

» Market risk

i. Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company
manages market risk through a treasury department, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management. The
treasury department recommends risk management objectives and policies, which are approved by Board of Directors. The activities of this department include
management of cash resources, borrowing strategies, and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 1o set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities, The Company, through its tralning and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in
which alt employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors oversees and monitors compliance with the company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.
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ii. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises

principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securities.
The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Cash and cash equivalents

The company maintains its Cash and cash equivalents and Bank deposits with banks having good reputation, good past track record and high quality credit rating
and also reviews their credit-worthiness on an on-going basis.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables of the company are typically unsecured. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals and periodic monitoring of the creditworthiness of
customers to which company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
condition and monitors the creditworthiness of its customers to which it grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The allowance for impairment of
Trade receivables is created to the extent and as and when required, based upon the expected collectability of accounts receivables. The company has no
concentration of credit risk as the customer base is geographically distributed in India.

At March 31, 2021 the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region was as follows:

Domestic ' - 39,67,120
Other regions - -
- 39,67,120

fmpairment
At March 31, 2021, the ageing of trade and other receivables that were not impaired was as follows.

less than six months k T ' ) " - -
more than six months - - - 39,67,120 - 39,67,120

- - - 39,67,120 - 39,67,120

The above receivables which are past due butnot impaired are assessed on individual case to case basis and relate to a number of independent third party
customers from whom there is no recent history of default. These financial assets were not impaired as there had not been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts were still considered recoverable based on the nature of the activity of the customer portfolio to which they belong and the type of customers. There
are no other classes of financial assets that are past due but not impaired except for Trade receivables as at March 31, 2021,
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Note 29 ; Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management {contd.}

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations
without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet
its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash

management system.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
ts:

Year ended March 31, 2021

Borrowings 65,316 65,316
Trade payables - 16,84,102 16,84,102 - - -
Other financial liabilities - 589,09,090 589,09,050 - - -

- 606,58,508  606,58,508 - - -

Year ended March 31, 2020

Trade payables - 16,84,102 16,84,102 - - -
Other financial liabilities - 833,48,822  $833,48,822 - - -

- 850,32,924 850,32,924 - - -
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits.

Note 30 : Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure
that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions or its
business requirements. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings
less cash and short-term deposits {including other bank balance).

Interest-bearing loans and 65,316 -
borrowings

1,66,20 /57,2
Less: cash and cash equivalent 6 > 1,57,250

{including other bank balance)
{Note 7}

Net debt {1,00,889}) {1,57,250)

Equity share capital (Note 10)

425,00,000 425,00,000
Other equity (Note 11} {1307,70,606) {1142,63,155}
Total capital (882,70,606) (717,63,155)
Capital and net debt (883,71,495) {719,20,405)
Gearing ratio 0 0

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021
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Note 31 : Dues to micro,small and medium suppliers

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which
recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the
Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘the MSMED Act’) accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable
to such enterprises as at March 31, 2021 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and
available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in
accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest
from anv supolier as at the balance-sheet date.

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any - -
supplier as at the end of accounting year;

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the - -
MSMED Act along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making - -
payment (which has been paid but beyod the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of - -
accounting year; and

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding - -
period, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to

the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

On basis of information and records available with the Company, the above disclosures are made in respect of amount due to
the micro, small and medium enterprises, which have been registered with the relevant competent authorities. The above
information takes into account only those suppliers who have submitted their registration details or has responded to the
inquiries made by the Company for this purpose. '






INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Instant Global Paytech Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial Statements of Instant Global Paytech Private Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period ended on that date and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and its financial performance
(including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the period ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the management / Board's Report but does not include the

standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

1. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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2.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also :

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2 Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(@ We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) As per Circular no. G.S.R. 583 ( E ), dated June 13t 2017 the clause (i) of the section 143(3) of the
Act regarding the internal financial control is not applicable to the Company.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

I.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There were no amounts which were, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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3 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, being a private limited
company provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the company.

ForSGCO&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No 112081W/W100184

Suresh Murarka

Partner

Mem. No. 44739

UDIN : 21044739AAAALZ8106

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20t May, 2021
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” in our Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Instant Global Paytech
Private Limited for the period ended 31st March, 2021.

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 and according to the information and
explanations given to us during the course of the audit and on the basis of such checks of the books
and records as were considered appropriate we report that:

(0

(i

(i)

(v)

a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

b) As explained to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management in accordance with a phased programme of verification, which in our opinion
is reasonable, considering the size and the nature of its assets. In pursuance to the
programme, certain fixed assets have been physically verified by the Company during the
year. The frequency of verification is reasonable and no discrepancies have been noticed
on such physical verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the company, the company do not have any immovable property.
Hence Clause 3(i) (c) of the said order is not applicable to the company

Since the company being a service provider does not hold any inventory, Clause 3(ii) of the
said order is applicable to the company

a) The Company has granted unsecured loans to its Subsidiary Company covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) As explained to us and on the basis of information and explanation given to us, the rate
of interest and terms and conditions on the basis of which such loans are granted are not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

¢) As informed to us, no repayment schedule has been stipulated for repayment of principal
and interest. There is no overdue amount outstanding for more than 90 days.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the company, the Company has complied with the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable.

4A, Kaledonia, Tel : 491 22 6625 6363

2" Floor, Sahar Road, Fax : +91 22 6625 6364
Near Andheri Station, Email : info@sgco.co.in
Andheri (East), Webpage:

Mumbai — 400 069 WWW.SEC0.C0.in



(vi)

(vii)

(viil

(xi)

(i)

(xii)

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in accordance with the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Act, for the Company.

a) Accordingly to the records of the Company, the undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of
Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess, Goods and Service Tax and other
statutory dues wherever applicable have regularly been deposited with the appropriate
authorities. There are no undisputed amount payable in respect of such statutory dues
which have remained outstanding as at 31st March, 2021 for a period more than six months
from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Goods and Service Tax and Value Added
Tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute with the relevant
authorities.

As the company does not have any borrowings from any banks or financial institutions or
Government; nor it has not issued debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions
of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course
of our audit.

This being a Private Limited Company, section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examinations
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
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sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

ForSGCO &Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No 112081W/W100184

Suresh Murarka

Partner

Mem. No. 44739

UDIN : 21044739AAAALZ8106

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th May, 2021
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INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

(Amount in Rs.)

. As at As at
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A 12,43,867 18,63,600
Intangible assets 3B 40,87,004 46,59,129
Financial assets

Investments 4 75,00,000
Loans 5 1,33,78,988 -
Other Financial Assets 6 77,137 98,550
Income tax assets 7 1,56,55,728 1,17,78,508
Total non-current assets 4,19,42,724 1,83,99,788
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 8 1,99,42,566 1,20,21,938
Cash and cash equivalents 9 10,79,29,513 1,01,61,496
Other Financial Assets 6 12,50,88,032 4,05,52,817
Other current assets 10 1,57,083 58,642
Total current assets 25,31,17,195 6,27,94,892
TOTAL ASSETS 29,50,59,919 8,11,94,681
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11 3,15,000 2,94,000
Other equity 3,17,85,716 6,43,297
Total equity 3,21,00,716 9,37,297
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 12 17,53,892 8,28,781
Total non-current liabilities 17,53,892 8,28,781
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 13 1,63,11,295 81,07,226
Other Financial Liabilities 14 23,82,28,141 6,77,31,998
Other current liabilities 15 66,61,032 35,25,263
Provisions 12 4,843 64,115
Total current liabilities 26,12,05,311 7,94,28,602
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 29,50,59,919 8,11,94,681
Notes form an integral part of the financial statements
ForSGCO&Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Firm Registration No. 112081W / W100184
Suresh Murarka Vivek Patel Daykin Creado
Partner Director Director
Mem. No. 44739 DIN : 06467358 DIN : 08184883

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th May, 2021 Date: 20th May, 2021




INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2021

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended
31 Mar 2021 31 March 2020

Income
Revenue from operations 16 46,18,15,912 24,80,26,715
Other income 17 9,35,477 60,108
Total income 46,27,51,388 24,80,86,823
Expenses
Cost of Sales 18 42,07,10,343 22,44,96,908
Employee benefits expense 19 7,09,79,558 5,79,86,196
Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 13,68,322 8,96,041
Other expenses 21 87,57,958 64,02,863
Total expenses 50,18,16,181 28,97,82,007
Profit / (Loss) before tax (3,90,64,792) (4,16,95,184)
Tax expense/ (credit)

Current income tax

Deferred Tax Expenses
Profit/ (loss) for the year (A) (3,90,64,792) (4,16,95,184)
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

- Gain on fair value of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation 2,28,281 9,54,962
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) 2,28,281 9,54,962
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax (A+B) (3,88,36,511) (4,07,40,222)
Earnings per share (EPS) 22
(Earnings per equity share of nominal value Rs. 10 each)
Basic (in Rs.) (123.29) (141.82)
Diluted (in Rs.) (123.29) (141.82)

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our audit report of even date

ForSGCO&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112081W / W100184

Suresh Murarka

Partner

Mem. No. 44739

Place: Mumbai

Date: 20th May, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Vivek Patel
Director
DIN : 06467358

Place: Mumbai

Date: 20th May, 2021

Daykin Creado
Director
DIN : 08184883




INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2021

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss) / profit before tax (3,90,64,792) (4,16,95,184)
Adjustments for
Gain on fair value of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation 2,28,281 9,54,962
Depreciation and amortisation expense 13,68,322 8,96,041
Interest Income (2,26,614) -
Operating profit before working capital changes (3,76,94,803) (3,98,44,182)
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (79,20,628) (47,70,186)
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets (98,442) 3,21,181
Decrease / (increase) in other Financial assets (8,45,13,802) (2,34,95,561)
(Decrease) / Increase in trade and other payables 17,87,00,212 5,53,70,594
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 31,35,769 18,01,832
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 8,65,840 2,94,217
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 5,24,74,145 (1,03,22,105)
Direct taxes paid (38,77,220) (1,09,52,069)
Net cash (used in) / from generated from operating activities 4.85,96,925 (2,12,74,173)
. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Including Intangible Assets) (1,76,464) (31,48,306)
Investment in Subsidiary (75,00,000) -
Loan granted to Subsidiary (1,33,78,988)
Interest income 2,26,614 -
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (2,08,28,838) (31,48,306)
. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Equity Shares 6,99,99,930
Net cash (used in) / from financing activities 6,99,99,930
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 9,77,68,017 (2,44,22,479)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,01,61,496 3,45,83,975
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10,79,29,513 1,01,61,496
Components of cash and cash equivalents :
In bank current accounts in Indian rupees 10,77,54,253 1,01,40,071
Fixed Deposits 1,50,604 -
Cash on hand 24,656 21,425
10,79,29,513 1,01,61,496

Note : 1. The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7)
statement of cash flows.

2. Previous Period figures have been re-grouped and or re-arranged wherever considered necessary.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our audit report of even date
ForSGCO&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112081W / W100184

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Suresh Murarka Vivek Patel Daykin Creado
Partner Director Director
Mem. No. 44739 DIN : 06467358 DIN : 08184883

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th May, 2021

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th May, 2021




INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended 31st March 2021

a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 1 (PY Rs. 10/-) each issued, subscribed and paid

Particulars Number Amount in Rs.
As at 1 April 2019 29,400 2,94,000
Issue of equity shares - -
As at 31 March 2020 29,400 2,94,000
Split of share capital in the ratio 1:10 2,64,600 -
Issue of equity shares 21,000 21,000
As at 31 March 2021 3,15,000 3,15,000
b) Other equity
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other comprehensive

income Total equity attributable to

Securities premium Retained Gain on fair value of defined equity holders
earnings benefit plans

As at 1 April 2019 5,98,56,048 (1,84,72,529) 4,13,83,519
Total comprehensive income for the period (4,16,95,184) 9,54,962 (4,07,40,222)
As at 31 March 2020 5,98,56,048 (6,01,67,713) 9,54,962 6,43,297
On issue of shares 6,99,78,930 6,99,78,930
Total comprehensive income for the period (3,90,64,792) 2,28,281 (3,88,36,511)
As at 31 March 2021 12,98,34,978 (9,92,32,505) 11,83,243 3,17,85,716

This is the statement of Equity referred to in our audit report of even date

ForSGCO&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112081W / W100184

Suresh Murarka
Partner
Mem. No. 44739

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th May, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Vivek Patel
Director
DIN : 06467358

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th May, 2021

Daykin Creado
Director
DIN : 08184883




INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

Note 1 Corporate Information

Instant Global Paytech Private Limited ("the Company") is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The Company is principally engaged in business of issue of Multi purpose prepaid cards,payment
processing,payment collection and related services or providing bill payment system across india. The registered office of the Company is located at 6th
Floor , Season Avenue, Linking Road, Khar(West),Mumbai City, Maharashtra, 400 054

Note 2.1 Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified
under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain financial assets and liabilities which have
been measured at fair value, on an accrual basis of accounting.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the
guidance set out in Schedule Ill to the Act. Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract/
service including the defect liability period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies) within the
credit period normally applicable to the respective project.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS, requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial
statements and the results of operation during the reported period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which are recognised in the period in which they are determined.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Deferred tax assets

In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will
not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in
which the temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future
taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable
income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets are deductible, management believes that the Company will realize the benefits of
those deductible differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if
estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

Defined benefit plans

The cost and present value of the gratuity obligation and compensated absences are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases, attrition rate and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.



INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

Vi

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including attributable interest and finance costs, if any, till the date of acquisition/
installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant
and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and
related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, either on disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain
or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work-in-progress, representing expenditure incurred in respect of assets under development and not ready for their intended use, are carried at
cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, construction cost, related borrowing cost and other direct expenditure.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets includes software which are not integral part of the hardware are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Intangible assets under
development represents expenditure incurred in respect of softwares under deviopment and are carried at cost.

Assets acquired but not ready for use are classified under intangible assets under development.

Depreciation

Depreciation/ amortisation is provided:

a Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method basis considering the useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act on a pro-
rata basis.

b Computer software and other application software costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives that is over a period of three years.

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation carried out by the management’s expert, in order to reflect the actual usage of the
assets. The asset's useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a Financial Assets

Initial Recognition

In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold
these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.
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Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCl is carried at FVPL.

Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
on financial assets and credit risk exposures.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Simplified approach does not require
the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based
on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of Financial Assets
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

b Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument.

Investments in equity
All the equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

vii Employee Benefits

a

Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees’ state insurance, labour welfare are charged as an expense
based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. The above benefits are classified
as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company also provides for gratuity which is a defined benefit plan, the liabilities of which is determined based on valuations, as at the balance
sheet date, made by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in
respect of gratuity are recognised in the OCI, in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in OCI are not reclassified to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of plan
amendment or curtailment. The classification of the Company’s obligation into current and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report.
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¢ Short-term Benefits
Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognised as expenses at the undiscounted amounts in
the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which the related service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is
recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

viii Cash and Cash Equivalents

Xi

Xii

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
month or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign Exchange Translation and Accounting of Foreign Exchange Transaction

a Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between
the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses a monthly average
rate if the average rate approximate the actual rate at the date of the transactions.

b Conversion
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported using the closing rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary items
which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

¢ Treatment of Exchange Difference
Exchange differences arising on settlement/ restatement of short-term foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of the Company are
recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss except those arising from investment in Non Integral operations.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Income Tax
Income tax comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised as an expense or income in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
except to the extent it relates to items directly recognised in equity or in OCI.

a Current Income Tax
Current income tax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting
date.

b Deferred Income Tax
Deferred tax is determined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences between the financial statements’ carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax base. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognised in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realisation.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative Tax ("MAT") credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is probable that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period.

Trade receivables

A receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold or services rendered in the normal course
of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less provision
for impairment.
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Xiii

Xiv

XV

XVi

Trade payables

A payable is classified as a ‘trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or services received in the normal course
of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid.
These amounts are unsecured and are usually settled as per the payment terms stated in the contract. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period
and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company and
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares).

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Provisions (excluding gratuity and compensated absences) are determined based on management's estimate required to settle the obligation
at the Balance Sheet date. In case the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases,
where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to
explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.
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Note 3A : Property, plant and equipment

Tangible assets
Gross carrying value (at deemed cost) (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Computer (Including Total
Terminals)

Balance as at 1 April 2020 - -
Additions 23,92,793 23,92,793

Disposals - .
Balance as at 1 April 2020 23,92,793 23,92,793
Additions 1,76,464 1,76,464
Disposals - .

Balance as at 31st March 2021 25,69,257 25,69,257

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2020 - -
Depreciation charge 5,29,193 5,29,193

Balance as at 1 April 2020 5,29,193 5,29,193
Depreciation charge 7,96,198 7,96,198
Balance as at 31st March 2021 13,25,391 13,25,391

Net carrying value
Balance as at 31st March 2021 12,43,867 12,43,867

Note 3B : Intangible assets

Gross carrying value (at deemed cost)

Particulars Computer Software Total
Balance as at 1 April 2020 - -
Additions 53,86,972 53,86,972
Disposals - -
Balance as at 1 April 2020 53,86,972 53,86,972
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31st March 2021 53,86,972 53,86,972

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2020 7,27,843 7,27,843
Amortisation charge - -

Balance as at 1 April 2020 7,27,843 7,27,843
Amortisation charge 5,72,124 5,72,124
Balance as at 31st March 2021 12,99,967 12,99,967

Net carrying value
Balance as at 31st March 2021 40,87,004 40,87,004
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Note 4 : Investments

(Valued at cost, unless stated otherwise)

) As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Investment in Subsidiaries:

Cardpay Technology Private Limited 75,00,000
(50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid up)

75,00,000
Note 5 : Loans

_ As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Non Curernt
Loan to Subsidiary Company 1,33,78,988

1,33,78,988
Note 6 : Other Financial Assets

_ As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Non Curernt
Security Deposits 77,137 98,550
Total Non Current Portion 77,137 98,550
Current
Business advances (Refer Note 26) 12,50,13,032 4,04,77,817
Security Deposits 75,000 75,000
Total Current Portion 12,50,88,032 4,05,52,817
Total Other Financial Assets 12,51,65,169 4,06,51,367
Note 7 : Income tax assets
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Tax deducted at Source 1,56,55,728 1,17,78,508
Net income tax Assets 1,56,55,728 1,17,78,508
Note 8 : Trade receivables
(Unsecured)

icul As at As at
Particulars 31 March2021 31 March 2020
Trade receivables

- considered good 1,99,42,566 1,20,21,938
(Refer Note 26)
Total trade receivables 1,99,42,566 1,20,21,938
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Note 9 : Cash and cash equivalents

Particul As at As at

articuiars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balances with banks

- Current accounts 10,77,54,253 1,01,40,071
Cash on hand 24,656 21,425
Fixed Deposits 1,50,604 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 10,79,29,513 1,01,61,496
Note 10 : Other current assets

, As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Prepaid expenses 98,940 57,584
Other receivables 34,761 -
Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposit 912 -
Prepaid Rent 22,471 1,058
Total other current assets 1,57,083 58,642
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Note 11 : Equity share capital

As at As at

Particulars
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Authorised share capital

10,00,000 (PY 30,000) Equity Shares of Rs 1/- (PY Rs. 10/-) each 10,00,000 3,00,000
Total authorised share capital 10,00,000 3,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital:

3,15,000 (PY 29,400) Equity Shares of Rs 1/- (PY Rs. 10/-) each, fully paid up 3,15,000 2,94,000
Total issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital 3,15,000 2,94,000

During the year, the Company has undertaken the due secretarial processes to split the share capital in the ratio 1:10 as on April 24,
2020. The Company has also increased authorised capital from 3,00,000 equity shares to 10,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 1/- each vide
ordinary ressolution passed in Extra Ordinary general meeting of members held on 6th May, 2020. Further, the Company has allotted
21,000 equity shares of Rs. 1/- each fully paid up on right issue basis to its Holding Company, Infiobeam Avenues Limited vide resolution
passed in board meeting held on 6th May, 2020.

. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Number Amount in Rs.
As at 1 April 2019 29,400 2,94,000
Issued during the year
As at 31 March 2020 29,400 2,94,000
Split of share capital in the ratio 1:10 2,64,600
Issued during the year 21,000 21,000
As at 31 March 2021 3,15,000 3,15,000

. Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 1 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend, if any.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

. Shareholding of more than 5%: As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Name of the Shareholder % held No. of shares % held No. of shares
Infibeam Avenues Limited 52.38% 1,65,000 48.98% 14,400
Mr. Varun Vakharia 19.05% 60,000 20.41% 6,000
Mr. Daykin Creado 14.29% 45,000 15.31% 4,500
Ms Shreya Udipi 13.33% 42,000 14.29% 4,200

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
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Note 12 : Provisions

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Non- current
Provision for gratuity 17,53,892 8,28,781
Total non- current provision 17,53,892 8,28,781
Current
Provision for gratuity 4,843 64,115
Total current provision 4,843 64,115
Total provisions 17,58,735 8,92,896
Note 13 : Trade payables
Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of Micro, Small and medium Enterprises - 2,61,400
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro, Small and medium Enterprises 1,63,11,295 78,45,826
Total trade payables 1,63,11,295 81,07,226

The Company has amounts due to micro, small and medium suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act 2006 (MSMED Act), as at 31 March 2019

The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under:

Particulars As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2021 2020
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act

Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above amount

Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond appointed day during the year

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act towards payments already
made

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act.

2,61,400

Note: This information, as required to be disclosed under the MSMED Act, has been determined to the extent such parties have

been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

Trade payables are normally non-interest bearing and settled as per the payment terms stated in the contract.
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Note 14 : Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Business Advances 23,82,28,141 6,77,31,998
Total other current liabilities 23,82,28,141 6,77,31,998
Note 15 : Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Statutory dues payable
- Goods and services tax (GST) payable 34,95,629 16,25,399
- Tax deducted at source payable 25,55,300 13,80,449
- Professional tax payable 25,775 20,800
- Provident fund payable 5,69,103 4,98,615

ESIC Payable 15,225

Total other current liabilities 66,61,032 35,25,263
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Note 16 : Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue from Operations
Sale of Cards 84,66,507 99,66,184
Sale of Services
Commission 39,69,50,037 20,72,71,240
Others 5,63,99,368 3,07,89,291
Total revenue from operations 46,18,15,912 24,80,26,715
Note 17 : Other income
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Interest income on unwinding of financial assets 5179 6,131
Interest income on fixed deposit 1,516 40,166
Interest income Received 2,26,614 13,811
Interest on 'Income Tax Refund 7,02,168 -
Total Other income 9,35,477 60,108
Note 18 : Cost of Sales
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Costs related to Sale of Cards
Costs of Cards & Other charges 87,34,226 31,20,852
Costs related to Sale of Services
Commission Expenses 34,73,01,293 18,24,14,648
Other Charges 6,46,74,823 3,89,61,407
Total Cost of Sales 42,07,10,343 22,44,96,908
Note 19 : Employee benefits expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Salaries and incentives 6,03,53,026 4,76,93,542
Contribution to Provident fund 30,58,280 26,63,288
Director's remuneration 73,09,206 73,18,710
Staff welfare expenses 2,59,046 3,10,657
Total employee benefits expense 7,09,79,558 5,79,86,196
Note 20 : Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Depreciation on tangible assets (Refer note 3A) 7,96,198 3,49,119
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 3B) 5,72,124 5,46,922
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 13,68,322 8,96,041
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Note 21 : Other expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Professional & Consultancy Expenses 27,71,055 14,79,192
Rent expense 4,81,849 4,68,345
Electricity charges 1,61,850 3,71,067
Travelling and Conveyance 2,34,773 7,44,425
Auditors Remunaration 3,55,000 3,70,000
Rates and taxes 10,18,916 86,157
Communication and Internet Expenses 8,11,669 5,95,204
Software Maintenance Charges 20,66,954 11,84,647
Miscellaneous expenses 8,55,893 11,03,826
Total other expenses 87,57,958 64,02,863
Auditors' remuneration:

i) Audit fees 3,55,000 2,30,000
ii) Other Services - 1,40,000
3,55,000 3,70,000

Note 22 : Earnings per share (EPS)

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Basic and diluted EPS
Profit computation for basic earnings per share of Rs. 1 each
Net profit/ (loss) as per the Statement of Profit and Loss available for equity shareholders (3,90,64,792) (4,16,95,184)
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS computation 3,15,000 2,94,000
Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS computation 3,15,000 2,94,000
Basic EPS (124.02) (141.82)
Diluted EPS (124.02) (141.82)

Note : Weighted average number of equity shares for previous year have been adjusted for Split of share capital in the ratio 1:10

Note 23 : In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans & Advances are realisable in the ordinary course of business atleast
equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess

of amount reasonably necessary.

Note 24 Related party disclosures as required under Indian Accounting Standard 18, “Related party disclosures” are given

below:

A) Names of related parties and nature of relationship (to the extent of transactions entered into during the year except for control

relationships where all parties are disclosed)

Key Management Personnel
Daykin Creado

Vivek Patel

Holding Company

Infibeam Avenues Limited
Subsidiary Company

Cardpay Technology Private Limited



INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

B) Transactions carried out with related parties referred to above, in ordinary course of business and balances outstanding:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1. Daykin Creado
Remuneration 48,93,426 48,90,929
Balance outstanding as at the period end
Remuneration Payable 3,88,119 3,88,119
Balance at the beginning for the period
Remuneration Payable 3,88,119 2,90,415
2. Vivek Patel
Remuneration 24,15,780 24,27,781
Balance outstanding as at the period end
Remuneration Payable 2,23,315 2,23,315
Balance at the beginning for the period
Remuneration Payable 2,23,315 1,52,500
3. Infibeam Avenues Limited
Rent Deposit Given 1,00,000 -
Rent Expenses 3,00,000 3,00,000
Commission Income / Other Direct Income 2,51,279 91,264
Commission Expense / Other Direct Expense 2,40,28,907 2,13,92,333
Amount Recevied for Meal Card ( Mumbai Division) 13,64,380 11,13,100
Amount Recevied for Meal Card ( Ahmedabad Division) 3,78,400 -
Balance outstanding as at the period end
Trade Payables 27,625 27,000
Trade Receivables 3,24,453 4,14,709
Business advances / Other receivables 70,85,336 47,02,283
Balance at the beginning of the year
Trade Payables 27,000 4,19,720
Trade Receivables 414,709 -
Business advances / Other receivables 47.02,283 57,32,907
4. Cardpay Technology Private Limited
Loan Given 1,31,75,035
Interest Expense on loan taken (Net of TDS) 2,03,953
Balance outstanding as at the period end
Loan Receivable 1,33,78,988

Balance at the beginning of the year
Loan Receivable

Note:-
a) Related Parties are as disclosed by the Management and relied upon by the Auditors.

b) There is no amount Written off/ written back due from/ to related parties.
c) Expenses in the nature of reimbursements are not considered in the above disclosures

Note 25 : Contingent Liabilities : Rs. Nil
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Note 26 Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'

A Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity (unfunded)

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 under which an employee who has completed five years of
service is entitled to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at

retirement age.

a) Changes in defined benefit obligations
beginning of the year
Interest cost
Current service cost
Remeasurements - Net actuarial (gains)/ losses
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

b) Expenses recognised in the Statement of
Interest cost
Current service cost
Total

¢) recognised in OCI
the period
Total

d) Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate
Salary escalation rate - over a long-term
Mortality rate

The attrition rate varies from 1% to 5% for various age groups

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
8,92,896 5,98,679
56,213 41,149
10,37,907 12,08,030
(2,28,281) (9,54,962)
17,58,735 8,92,896
56,213 41,149
10,37,907 12,08,030
10,94,120 12,49,179
(2,28,281) (9,54,962)
(2,28,281) (9,54,962)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
6.33% p.a. 6.53% p.a.
8.00% p.a. 8.00% p.a.
lives mortality  lives mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and

other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

e) Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption as stated above, showing how the defined benefit obligation would be

affected, considering increase/decrease as at 31.03.2021 is as below:;

. Gratuity - Gratuity -
Particulars Unfunded Unfunded
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Defined Benefit | Defined Benefit
Obligation Obligation
Discounting rate varied by 1%
+0.1% 15,24,218 7,80,490
-0.1% 20,48,738 10,31,811
Salary growth rate varied by 1%
+0.1% 20,03,783 10,27,420
-0.1% 15,27,226 7,81,751

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation keeping all

other actuarial assumptions constant.




INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

Note 26 Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'

f) Maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation
The expected future cash flows as at 31st March 2021 were as follows:

Gratuity - Gratuity -

Particulars Unfunded Unfunded
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Projected benefits payable in future years
1st following year 4,843 64,115
2nd following year 4,564 2,558
3rd following year 2,48,332 2,415
4th following year 1,26,071 1,42,503
5th following year 29,662 66,585
Years 6 to 10 38,854 17,733
Other details as at 31.03.2021

Gratuity - Gratuity -

Particulars unfunded unfunded
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Weighted Average Duration of the Projected 8.94 7.33
Prescribed contribution for next year 15,90,870 10,37,907
B Defined contribution plans 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a) The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and

Loss for the year:
(i) Contribution to provident fund 30,58,280 26,63,288

30,58,280 26,63,288

b) The expenses for leave entitlement and compensated absences is recognized in the same manner as gratuity and provision of

Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil) has been made as at 31 March 2021.

C  Current/ non-current classification
Gratuity
Current
Non-current

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
4,843 64,115
17,53,892 8,28,781

17 58,735 8,92,896




INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Note 27 Financial instruments

The fair value of the financial assets are included at amounts at which the instruments could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:

(a) Fair value of cash and short term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, approximate their carrying amounts largely
due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

(b) Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness
of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the expected losses of these receivables.

Financial instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31st March 2021 were as follows:

Amount in Rs.
Particulars Refer Amortised cost Financial assets/ liabilities at fair ~ Financial assets/ liabilities ~ Total carrying  Total fair value
note value through profit or loss at fair value through OCI value

Designated Mandatory Designated  Mandatory

upon initial upon initial

recognition recognition
Assets:
Investments 4 75,00,000 75,00,000 75,00,000
Loans 5 1,33,78,988 1,33,78,988 1,33,78,988
Other Financial Assets 6  12,51,65,169 12,51,65,169 12,51,65,169
Trade recievables 8 1,99,42,566 1,99,42,566 1,99,42,566
Cash and cash equivalents 9  10,79,29,513 10,79,29,513 10,79,29,513
Liabilities:
Trade payables 13 1,63,11,295 1,63,11,295 1,63,11,295
Other Financial Liabilities 14 23,82,28,141 23,82,28,141 23,82,28,141




INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31st March 2020 were as follows:

Amount in Rs.
Particulars Refer Amortised cost Financial assets/ liabilities at fair ~ Financial assets/ liabilities ~ Total carrying ~ Total fair value
note value through profit or loss at fair value through OCI value

Designated Mandatory Designated  Mandatory

upon initial upon initial

recognition recognition
Assets:
Other Financial Assets 6 4,06,51,367 4,06,51,367 4,06,51,367
Trade recievables 8 1,20,21,938 1,20,21,938 1,20,21,938
Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,01,61,496 1,01,61,496 1,01,61,496
Liabilities:
Trade payables 13 81,07,226 81,07,226 81,07,226
Other Financial Liabilities 14 6,77,31,998 6,77,31,998 6,77,31,998




INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Note 28 Liquidity risk

Liquidity is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price.
The Company’s treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes
and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position
through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities:

Particulars Amountin Rs.
As at 31 March 2021 On demand Less than 1 year 1-5years More than 5 years Total

Trade payables 1,63,11,295 - - 1,63,11,295
Other Financial Liabilities 23,82,28,141 23,82,28,141
Total 25,45,39,436 - - - 25,45,39,436
Particulars Amount in Rs.
As at 31 March 2020 On demand Less than 1 year 1-5years More than 5 years Total

Trade payables 81,07,226 - - - 81,07,226
Other Financial Liabilities 6,77,31,998 6,77,31,998
Total 7,58,39,224 - - - 7,58,39,224

Note 29 : Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The Company strives to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so
that they can maximise returns for the shareholders and benefits for other stake holders. The aim to maintain an optimal capital
structure and minimise cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements
of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or adjust the dividend payment to shareholders (if permitted). Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors
its capital using the gearing ratio which is total debt divided by total capital plus total debts.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Total debts - -
Total equity 3,21,00,716 9,37,297
Total debts to equity ratio (Gearing ratio) 0.00% 0.00%

Note 30 : The outbreak of Corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance. The Company
has taken into account the possible impact of Covid-19 in preparation of the financial statements, including its assessment of
recoverable value of its assets based on internal and external information upto the date of approval of these financial statements
and current indicators of future economic conditions.

Note 31 : Previous period figures have been re-grouped and or re-arranged wherever considered necessary.

This is a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
referred to in our report of even date

ForSGCO &Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants INSTANT GLOBAL PAYTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Firm Registration No. 112081W / W100184

Suresh Murarka Vivek Patel Daykin Creado
Partner Director Director

Mem. No. 44739 DIN : 06467358 DIN : 08184883
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 20th May, 2021 Date: 20th May, 2021
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